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Inaforma complaint filed, and served on defendant CSX Trangportation, Inc. (CSXT), on
Jduly 19, 2002, Bolen-Brunson-Bell Lumber Company, Inc. (BBB) alegesthat CSXT hasfailed to
provide transportation and service to BBB on reasonable request in violation of 49 U.S.C. 11101(a).
BBB seeks aBoard order requiring CSXT to cease and desist from such violation and to pay BBB
damages in an amount to be determined plus interest to be calculated pursuant to 49 CFR 1141.1.2

By joint motion filed on August 16, 2002, CSXT and BBB seek a protective order with
respect to evidentiary submissons and in aid of discovery. The proposed order, as set out in the
gppendix, includes provisions governing the production of highly confidential materia and tipulates that
the protected exchange of materid will not congtitute an unauthorized disclosure, or result in crimind
penalties, under 49 U.S.C. 11904.

Good cause exigts to grant the motion. The unrestricted disclosure of confidentid, proprietary,
or commercidly sendtive materia could cause serious competitive injury. 1ssuance of the requested
protective order will ensure that the materia produced, in response to a discovery request or otherwise,

1 BBB smultaneoudy filed a petition under 49 U.S.C. 10502(d) for the partid revocation of
the exemption for rail shipments of lumber or wood productsin Rail Exemption-L umber or Wood
Products, 7 1.C.C.2d 673 (1991).

2 BBB islocated on alinethat is the subject of a discontinuance application filed by CSXT on
July 10, 2002, in CSX Trangportation, Inc—Discontinuance—at Memphis, in Shelby County, TN, STB
Docket No. AB-55 (Sub-No. 618). Notice of that filing was served and published in the Federal
Regigter on July 30, 2002 (67 FR 49387).

3 A proposed protective order and undertaking were included with the motion.
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will be used only in connection with this proceeding and not for any other business or commercid
purpose. The motion conforms with the Board' srules at 49 CFR 1104.14 governing requests for
protective orders to maintain the confidentidity of materias submitted to the Board and the rules at 49
CFR 1114.21(c) for a protective order regarding discovery. Accordingly, the motion for protective
order will be granted.

On August 16, 2002, CSXT and BBB filed ajoint report on their conference, held pursuant to
49 CFR 1111.10(8). They have agreed to the procedural schedule set out below. The procedural
schedule will be adopted.

|t is ordered:

1. Thejoint motion for a protective order is granted.

2. The parties are directed to comply with the protective order in the appendix to this decision.

3. The procedurd schedulein this proceeding is asfollows:

October 1, 2002 End of discovery period.
October 28, 2002 Opening statements due.
November 18, 2002 Reply statements due.

December 3, 2002 Rebuttal statements due.

4. Thisdecison is effective on its service date.

By the Board, Vernon A. Williams, Secretary.

Vermon A. Williams
Secretary
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APPENDIX

PROTECTIVE ORDER

1. Any party producing materid in discovery to another party to this proceeding, or submitting
materid in pleadings, that the party believes in good faith reflects proprietary or confidentid information,
may designate and stamp such materid as“CONFIDENTIAL,” and such material must be treated as
confidentid. Such materia, any copies, and any data or notes derived therefrom:

(@ Shall be used solely for the purpose of this proceeding and any judicid
review proceeding arising therefrom, and not for any other business, commercid, or

competitive purpose.

(b) May be disclosed only to employees, counsel, or agents of the party
requesting such materia who have a need to know, handle, or review the materid for
purposes of this proceeding and any judicia review proceeding arising therefrom, and
only where such employee, counsd, or agent has been given and has read a copy of
this Protective Order, agrees to be bound by its terms, and executes the attached
Undertaking for Confidentid Materid prior to receiving access to such materias.

(c) Atthe producing party’s option, must be returned to the producing party or
must be destroyed by the requesting party, its employees, counsdl, and agents, & the
completion of this proceeding and any judicid review proceeding arisng therefrom.
However, outside counsd (but not outside consultants) for a party are permitted to
retain file copies of dl pleadings filed with the Board.

(d) If contained in any pleadings filed with the Board, shal, in order to be kept
confidentia, befiled only in pleadings submitted in a package clearly marked on the
outsde “ Confidentid Materids Subject to Protective Order.” See 49 CFR 1104.14.

2. Any party producing materia in discovery to another party to this proceeding, or submitting
materid in pleadings, may in good faith designate and stamp particular materia, such as materid
containing shipper-specific rate or cost data or other competitively sengtive information, as“HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL.” If any party wishesto chalenge such designation, the party may bring such matter
to the attention of the Board or any Administrative Law Judge presiding in this proceeding. Materid
that is so designated may be disclosed only to outside counsel or outside consultants of the party
requesting such materids who have a need to know, handle, or review the materids for purposes of this
proceeding and any judicia review proceeding arising therefrom, provided that such outside counsel or
outside consultants have been given and have read a copy of this Protective Order, agree to be bound
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by its terms, and execute the attached Undertaking for Highly Confidentiad Materid prior to receiving
access to such materias. Materid designated as“HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL” and produced in
discovery under this provision shdl be subject to dl of the other provisions of this Protective Order
including without limitation paragraph 1.

3. Inthe event that a party produces materia which should have been designated as
“CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL” and inadvertently fails to samp the materid as
“CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL,” the producing party may notify the other party
inwriting within 5 days of discovery of its inadvertent failure to make the confidentidity designation.
The party who received the materia without the confidentiaity designation will return the non-
designated portion or destroy it, as directed by the producing party, or take such other steps asthe
parties agree to in writing. The producing party will promptly furnish the receiving party with properly
desgnated materid.

4. Inthe event that a party inadvertently produces materid thet is protected by the attorney-
client privilege, work product doctrine, or any other privilege, the producing party may make awritten
request within a reasonable time after the producing party discovers the inadvertent disclosure that the
other party return the inadvertently produced privileged document. The party who received the
inadvertently produced document will either return the document to the producing party or destroy the
document immediately upon receipt of the written request, as directed by the producing party. By
returning or destroying the document, the receiving party is not conceding that the document is
privileged and is not waiving its right to later chalenge the substantive privilege dlaim, provided that it
may not chalenge the privilege clam by arguing that the inadvertent production waived the privilege.

5. If any party intends to use materid designated as“CONFIDENTIAL” and/or “HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL" a hearingsin this proceeding, or in any judicia review proceeding arisng
therefrom, the party so intending shdl submit any proposed exhibits or other documents setting forth or
revedling such Confidential and/or Highly Confidentid materid to any Adminidrative Law Judge, the
Board, or the court with a written request that the Judge, the Board, or the court: (@) restrict
atendance at the hearings during discussion of such Confidentid and/or Highly Confidentid materid;
and (b) restrict accessto the portion of the record or briefs reflecting discussion of such Confidentid
and/or Highly Confidential materid in accordance with the terms of this Protective Order.

6. If any party intends to use material designated as* CONFIDENTIAL” and/or “HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL” in the course of any deposition in this proceeding, the party so intending shdl so
advise counsd for the party producing the materias, counsel for the deponent, and dl other counsdl
atending the deposition, and dl portions of the deposition a which any such Confidentid and/or Highly
Confidentid materid is used shal be redtricted to persons who may review the material under this
Protective Order. All portions of deposition transcripts and/or exhibits that include or disclose such
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Confidentid and/or Highly Confidentid materids shal be kept under sedl and treated as Confidentia
and/or Highly Confidential materid in accordance with the terms of this Protective Order.

7. Tothe extent that materia reflecting the terms of contracts, shipper-specific traffic data,
other traffic data, or other proprietary information is produced by aparty in thisor any related
proceedings and is held and used by the receiving person in compliance with this Protective Order,
such production, disclosure, and use of the materiad and of the data that the materid containswill be
deemed essentid for the disposition of this and any related proceedings and will not be deemed a
violation of 49 U.S.C. 11904.

8. Except for this proceeding, the parties agree that if a party isrequired by law or order of a
governmenta or judicia body to release designated “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL” materia produced by the other party, or copies or notes thereof, asto which it
obtained access pursuant to this Protective Order, the party so required shdl notify the producing party
inwriting within 3 working days of receipt of actud notice of the rlease order or within 3 working days
of the determination that the Confidential materid, Highly Confidential materid, or copies or notes are
to be released or within 3 working days prior to such release, whichever is soonest, to permit the
producing party to contest the release.

9. All parties must comply with dl of the provisons stated in this Protective Order unless good
cause, as determined by an Adminigtrative Law Judge decision from which no apped istaken or by the
Board, is shown by any party to warrant suspension of any of the provisons herein.

10. Information that is publicly available or obtained outside of this proceeding from a person
with aright to discloseit shdl not be subject to this Protective Order even if the same information is
produced and designated as“CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL” inthis
proceeding.
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UNDERTAKING
CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL

l, , have read the Protective Order served on
September 5, 2002, governing the production of confidentia documentsin STB Finance Docket No.
34236, understand the same, and agree to be bound by itsterms. | agree not to use or permit the use
of any dataor information obtained under this Undertaking, or to use or permit the use of any
techniques disclosed or information learned as aresult of receiving such data or information, for any
purposes other than the preparation and presentation of evidence and argument in STB Finance Docket
No. 34236 or any judicid review proceeding arising therefrom. | further agree not to disclose any data
or information obtained under this Protective Order to any person who is not dso bound by the terms
of the Order and has not executed an Undertaking in the form hereof. At the conclusion of this
proceeding and any judicid review proceeding arigng therefrom, | will promptly destroy or return to
counsd for the originating party any copies of such designated documents obtained or made by me or
by any outsde counsd or outside consultants working with me, provided however, that outside counsel
(but not outside consultants) may retain file copies of pleadings filed with the Board.

| understand and agree that money damages would not be a sufficient remedy for breach of this
Undertaking and that parties producing confidential documents shdl be entitled to specific performance
and injunctive or other equitable relief as aremedy for any such breach, and | further agree to waive
any requirement for the securing or posting of any bond in connection with such remedy. Such remedy
shdl not be deemed to be the exclusive remedy for breach of this Undertaking but shdl be in addition
to dl remedies avallable a law or equity.

Dated:
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UNDERTAKING
HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL

As outside [counsdl] [consultant] for , for which | am acting in this
proceeding, | have read the Protective Order served on September 5, 2002, governing the production
of confidentia documentsin STB Finance Docket No. 34236, understand the same, and agreeto be
bound by itsterms. | dso understand and agree, as a condition precedent to my receiving, reviewing,
or usng copies of any documents designated “HIGHLY CONFDENTIAL,” that | will limit my use of
those documents and the information they contain to this proceeding and any judicia review proceeding
arising therefrom, that | will take al necessary steps to assure that said documents and informeation will
be kept on a confidentia basis by any outside counsd or outside consultants working with me, that
under no circumstances will | permit access to said documents or information by personnd of my client,
its subsidiaries, affiliates, or owners, and that at the conclusion of this proceeding and any judicia
review proceeding arisgng therefrom, | will promptly destroy or return to counsd for the originating
party any copies of such designated documents obtained or made by me or by any outside counsel or
outside consultants working with me, provided however, that outside counsd (but not outside
consultants) may retain file copies of pleadings filed with the Board. | further understand that | must
destroy dl notes or other documents containing such highly confidentia informeation in compliance with
the terms of the Protective Order. Under no circumstances will | permit access to documents
designated “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL” by, or disclose any information contained therein to, any
persons or entities for which | am not acting in this proceeding.

| understand and agree that money damages would not be a sufficient remedy for breach of this
Undertaking and that parties producing highly confidentid documents shal be entitled to specific
performance and injunctive or other equitable relief as aremedy for any such breach, and | further
agree to waive any requirement for the securing or posting of any bond in connection with such remedy.
Such remedy shdl not be deemed to be the exclusive remedy for breach of this Undertaking but shall
bein addition to dl remedies available at law or equity.

OUTSIDE [COUNSEL] [CONSULTANT]

Dated:




